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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Alamo Ranch was 2,500 acres in size at the time it belonged to John
Sparks, Governor of Nevada 1903-1908. At the time, the house and water-
tower were moved in December of 1978, the "ranch" had decreased to 14.37
acres in size. During the years subsequent owners had sold off parcels
of the ranch for various purposes.

For years, the ranch was the showplace of Washoe Valley with its elegant
main house, well-kept out buildings, and landscaped grounds. A descrip-
tion of the site, located on south Virginia Street at Peckham Lane in
Reno, just prior to the movement of the 14 room main house, will give

an inkling of the site's former elegance. Directly behind the mansion
was the sixty-foot frame water tower and indoor, second-floor swimming
pool. The remains of a good-sized greenhouse skirted the fence to the
south and the frame carriage house was on the north, about seventy-five
feet from the main house. A frame duplex which had a workshop in the
south end and a small residence in the north section was adjacent to the
mansion on the northwest. The caretaker's residence was just to the
north of the main house and west of the carriage house. It remains
occupied, the only building inhabited on the property. There was a
second frame residence just west of the caretaker's residence. Two
hundred feet to the west of that residence were the stables. North-west
of the carriage house and the above-mentioned small frame house was, a
small concrete silo and tack house.

The grounds, ohce so extensively landscaped, had gone to weeds. Several
of the original, massive cottonwood trees remained alive, but the fields
to the west gave no indication that they had been intensively cultivated
for many years. Everywhere the mass of the city encroached. The once-
elegant sculptured white fence which marked the boundaries of the pro-
perty on the south and the east was still up but in poor condition. Thus
was the appearance of the ranch headquarters when the mansion and the
water tower were moved in December of 1978 to a location some nine miles
south on U.S. 395 to a 24.6 acre tract giving the structure the same
orientation and the old cottonwood trees of the ranch site further north
on U.S. 395. The mansion, undergoing restoration, is now described in
detail:

General Site Description

The 1 and 1/2 story late nineteenth century home is situated on a rural
plain at the base of rolling hills nine miles south of Reno. It is set
back over 200 feet from Highway 395.

Plan:
The basic floor plan is rectangular; howeVer, there are numerous off-

sets and projections due to later additions. The main axis runs north-
south.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Alamo Ranch House is s1gn1flcant as the home of one of Nevada S most
beloved governors, Governor John Sparks (1903-08), and later as the home
of the.distinguished cattle baron William H. Moffat. It is an elaboxate;
ranch house, noteworthy for 1ts d1vers1ty of archltectural ornament.

John Sparks bought thé property in 1887 and christened it '"The Alamo".
Although born in Mississippi, he spent his younger years in Texas and

had high regard for the defenders of the Alamo. He began building his
handsome "plantation style" mansion soon after purchasing the property.

It was constructed on the site of one of the busiest crossroads of pioneer
Nevada.

The house includes a number of architectural elements commonly found in

a ranch house of this period: the bay window, the front porch, and the
assymetrical facade. Also incorporated into the structure were a variety
of details derived from the Classical, Gothic and other popular styles,
such as: the Doric columns; the Gothic arched openings and balustrade,
and the French doors. The result is a structure rich in decorative
detail, far more elaborate than the common ranch house.

In the mid 1890's, Sparks imported Hereford cattle from England and went
~into the breeding business. These were the first of that breed brought
into Nevada; a breed that is now the backbone of the state's large cattle
industry. In 1902, he became President of the American Hereford. Cattle
Breeding Association. Earlier, in 1900, he was elected to the Washoe
County Commission and in November of 1902, he was elected Governor of
Nevada.

Spark's Governorship was marked by much progressive legislation and at
least a measure of controversy due to his calling for Federal troops in
1907 to deal with labor problems in Goldfield. Sparks was reportedly
fond of entertaining and the Alamo Ranch was the political and social
center of Washoe Valley for many years. He was scrupulously honest,
personally likeable and is fondly remembered as oné of Nevada's best
Chief Executives.

After Spark's death, the property passed to the Farmers and Merchants
Bank of Reno. That same year, 1908, Joe Miller of Austin purchased the
property and sold off all but 320 acres. In September of 1909, Miller

-@0ld the buildings and the remaining acreage to Dr. George H. Thomas
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Foundation:

The original foundation of the home is no longer intact, and has been
replaced by a low foundation of concrete block. A proposed landscap-
ing project will conceal this present construction from view.

Facade:

Walls:

The structural system is wood frame. The exterior of the home is
covered in shiplap siding.

Windows:

The windows are 1/1 and double-hung. The proportion of the
window openings is two to one. The dormer windows are of a
similar type and shape. Two, fluted, engaged columns with
Doric capitals rise to support the returns of the small gable
roofs of the dormers. A similar treatment is given to the
larger dormer to the north. Double doors are set within a
Gothic arched opening and give access to the upper porch area.
The larger returns of this gable are supported by double,
engaged columns. All of the windows have simple surrounds.
Other distinguished window features include an angular bay
window on the front or east facade and an elliptical bay window
on the south facade.

Doors:

The primary entrance is located off center to the north. Two
Doric, fluted pilasters support an overhead shelf entablature
and denticulated cornice. The single door is paneled in a
custom-made design. Other distinguishing door features include
two sets of double French doors on the north facade. The in-
dividual lights are beveled and set within undulating custom-
made mullions. The overhangs of the secondary entrances in the
rear are bracketed.
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Facade: (continued)
Porch:

The north portion of the front facade is set behind a large
veranda, part of which is enclosed by screening. Octagonal,
fluted piers, mounted on square paneled bases, support the
porch roof and its boxed, denticulated cornice. Engaged,
fluted, polygonal piers serve as the responds. A heavy rail-
ing joins the supporting elements. The balustraded railing
of the balcony above displays a Gothic-arched cutout pattern
between the balusters. Although several of the structural
and decorative elements of this porch are not presently in
place, they do exist and will be restored.

Roof:

The steep pitched, gable roof was once covered with wood shingles.
Plywood sheets are presently employed as temporary roofing. At one
time an elegant, corbeled chimney straddled the ridge of the prin-
cipal gable. The orginal chimney brick still exists and is stacked
on the property.

Water Tower:

The relative placement of the tower and the home will approach that
of the past. The lower division of the base of the tower is covered
with flushboard siding. The upper division has decorative fishscale
shingles and ocular windows. The bracketed walkway above, masks the
transition between the four-sided base and the octagonal cupola.

The low pitched roof of the cupola is topped by a finial.
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for $80,000. Two years later, in June of:1911, the property was pur-
chased by William H. Moffat, a cattle rancher with large holdings in
both Nevada and California, widely known throughout the west for his
"Moffats Manteca Fed Beef.”

The property remained in the Moffat ownership until 1962 when it was
sold for a reported $500,000 to Lincoln Fitzgerald, a prominant Reno
casino and hotel owner. In 1978 the house and water tower were sold
to Raul and Leslie Hernandez, the present owners. They moved the
house and water tower to their new site in December of 1978 to insure
their preservation.
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